
Divisions Affected – Thame & Chinnor 

 
 

DELEGATED DECISIONS BY CABINET MEMBER FOR CHILDREN, 
EDUCATION AND YOUNG PEOPLE’S SERVICES 

15 May 2024 
 

 

STATUTORY APPROVAL FOR ASTON ROWANT CE PRIMARY 
SCHOOL TO CHANGE CATEGORY FROM VOLUNTARY 

CONTROLLED TO VOLUNTARY AIDED 
 

Report by Corporate Director for Children’s Services 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
1. The Cabinet Member is RECOMMENDED to 

 
a) Approve the proposal from the Governing Board of Aston Rowant CE 

Primary School to change its category from Voluntary Controlled to 
Voluntary Aided, with effect from 1 June 2024. 

 

Executive Summary 

 

2. The Governing Board of Aston Rowant CE Primary School has proposed a 
change in category from Voluntary Controlled to Voluntary Aided. As a 

prescribed alteration under the School Organisation (Prescribed Alterations to 
Maintained Schools) (England) Regulations 2013, this requires a statutory 
consultation and decision-making process. While the Governing Board can 

propose this change, the decision-maker is the local authority. The Cabinet 
Member is now required to make a decision on the proposal in accordance 

with the statutory prescribed alteration procedures. 
 

Introduction 

 
3. The Governing Board of Aston Rowant CE School seek a change of category 

from a Voluntary Controlled School to a Voluntary Aided School. They consider 
this will better represent the vision and ethos of the school, and provide more 
control over financial decisions, specifically relating to premises maintenance 

and management.  
 

4. This counts as a significant change under the School Organisation (Prescribed 
Alterations to Maintained Schools) (England) Regulations 2013, requiring a 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



prescribed alterations statutory consultation and decision-making process. 
Details of this process are set out in Statutory guidance for proposers and  
decision makers (last updated January 2023), referred to in this report as the  

Guidance.  While the Governing Board can propose this change, the decision-
maker is the local authority.  

 
5. The council has followed the statutory process for a significant change. A 

statutory notice was published by the county council on 29 February, followed 

by the required 4-week representation period, ending 28 March. Two 
representations were received: one in support, and one which initially objected 

on the basis that it was unclear how the proposal would benefit the school or 
the parish. The school subsequently provided further information to the 
respondent who objected, and the respondent is understood to no longer object.  

 
6. Under the prescribed process, the local authority must decide whether to 

approve the proposed alteration within 2 months of the representation period 
ending, i.e. by 28 May 2024, or the proposal must be referred to the Schools 
Adjudicator.  

 
7. The Guidance advises that “For a proposal to change the category of a school 

to voluntary aided, the decision maker should be satisfied that the governing 
body and/or the foundation are able and willing to meet their financial 
responsibilities for building work. The decision maker may wish to consider 

whether the governing body has access to sufficient funds to enable it to meet  
10% of its capital expenditure for at least 5 years from the date of 
implementation, taking into account anticipated building projects. When making 

a proposal to change category, proposers will need to consider whether the 
current terms on which the school’s land is held on trust allows for the change 

in category proposed. 
 

8. The governing body is clear that the specific financial responsibilities in relation 

to buildings, i.e. needing to fund 10% of the cost of capital work, is very 
achievable, and stated as such in its initial consultation document. There are no 

barriers to the change in category related to the school’s site terms.   
 

Implications of the Proposed Change 

 
9. If the change of status is approved, a new Instrument of Government would be 

drawn up and a majority of the Governing Board would be Foundation 
Governors, appointed by the Diocesan Board of Education. The Board would 

welcome existing governors who wished to become members of the new 
Governing Board. 
 

10. The change of status is not expected to have any implications for education 
standards. All the requirements of the National Curriculum still apply in a 

Voluntary Aided School. The Governing Board would be responsible for 
deciding the school’s policy on Religious Education and Collective Worship in 
relation to its Christian foundation and Trust Deed. The Diocesan Board of 

Page 2



Education recommends to Aided School Governing Boards that their schools 
work with the Locally Agreed Syllabus for Religious Education. 
 

11. The change of status would mean that the Governing Board would be 
responsible for admissions, and these would still be co-ordinated by the local 

authority. In drawing up its Admission Policy the Governing Board of an Aided 
School must consult before making any changes to their policy with all the 
other Admission Authorities in its area. There is no intention to make any 

changes currently. 
 

12. The change of status would result in a change in school building maintenance 
responsibilities and funding. Any new build or major refurbishment works for a 
Voluntary Aided School are 90% grant aided by the Diocesan Board of 

Education, with funds from the Department for Education (DfE) and would be 
the responsibility of the Governing Board. The remaining 10% of funding must 

be found by other means by the Governing Board, which accepts this 
responsibility. Governing Boards of Aided Schools receive support, guidance 
and expertise from the Diocesan Board’s Premises Team. 

 

Financial Implications 

 
13. The change in category would mean a minor impact to the funding OCC 

receives to maintain school buildings. OCC receives funding for Voluntary 

Controlled schools on a per pupil basis. The base per pupil rate for 2023/24 was 
£148.50 which is then adjusted using a calculation the DfE make for the 

condition of the school’s buildings as determined by the DfE Condition Data 
Collection process. For a Voluntary Aided school, the Diocese would receive 
this funding instead.  

 
Comments checked by: 

 
Thomas James, Head of Finance Business Partnering, 
thomas.james@oxfordshire.gov.uk  

 

Legal Implications 

 
14. The proposals set out in this report involve a legal process which the Council 

has followed, including statutory consultation. The recommendation for a 

change of category results in a change of legal status for the school. 
 

15. A change of category is covered by The School Organisation (Prescribed 
Alterations to Maintained Schools) (England) Regulations 2013 (‘the 
Prescribed Alterations Regulations’) which should be read in conjunction with 

Parts 2 and 3 and Schedule 3 of the Education and Inspections Act (EIA) 2006 
(as amended by the Education Act (EA) 2011) and the Prescribed Alterations 

Regulations.  
 

Page 3

mailto:thomas.james@oxfordshire.gov.uk


16. The proposed change is subject to the “Guidance”, as set out in “Making 
Significant Changes (‘Prescribed Alterations’) to maintained schools” last 
updated January 2023. This Guidance is for proposers and decision-makers. 

The Guidance states that the statutory proposal must contain sufficient 
information for interested parties to make a decision on whether to support or 

challenge the proposed change. The proposal should be accessible to all 
interested parties and should therefore use ‘plain English’. The full proposal 
must be published on a website (e.g. the school or LA’s website) along with a 

statement setting out:  
a. how copies of the proposal may be obtained;  

b. that anybody can object to, or comment on, the proposal;  
c. the date that the representation period ends; 
d. and the address to which objections or comments should be submitted.  

 
17. A brief notice (including details on how the full proposal can be accessed e.g. 

the website address) must be published in a local newspaper. Within one week 
of the date of publication on the website, the proposer must send a copy of the 
proposal and the information set out in the paragraph above to the Governing 

Board and any other body or person that the proposer thinks are appropriate.  
 

18. The representation period must last for four weeks from the date of the 
publication. During this period, any person or organisation can submit 
comments on the proposal to the LA to be taken into account by the decision-

maker. It is also good practice for representations to be forwarded to the 
proposer to ensure that they are aware of local opinion. 

 

Comments checked by: 
 

Paul Grant, Head of Legal and Deputy Monitoring Officer, Law & Governance 
(Legal Services) 
paul.grant@oxfordshire.gov.uk  

 

Staff Implications 

 
19. The change of category would mean that the governing board would become 

the employer of all the staff. The terms, conditions and continuity of the current 
staff of the school would be unaffected. TUPE consultations have been 
conducted alongside the statutory representation period.  

  

Equality & Inclusion Implications 

 
20. There are no equalities issues, or implications for community cohesion. 

 

Sustainability Implications 

 

21. There are no sustainability issues, or implications for travel and accessibility. 

Page 4

mailto:paul.grant@oxfordshire.gov.uk


Risk Management 

 
22. There are no risk management issues.  

Consultations 

 

23. The Governing Board of Aston Rowant CE Primary School conducted informal 
consultation between 18 December 2023 and 26 January 2024. There were 
18 responses, of which there was nobody against, and two which were 

unsure, and to whom the Governing Body provided further information.  
 

24. The statutory representations period ran from 29 February to 28 March 2024. 
There were two representations: one objection on the basis that it was unclear 
how the proposal would benefit the school or the parish, and one support. The 

school subsequently provided further information to the respondent who 
objected, and the respondent is understood to no longer object.  

 
 
Lisa Lyons 

Corporate Director for Children, Education & Families 
 

 
Annex 1: Statutory Notice 
 

Annex 2:  Statutory Proposal  
 

Background papers: Nil 
 
Contact Officer: Barbara Chillman, Pupil Place Planning Manager 

 07554 103418, barbara.chillman@oxfordshire.gov.uk 
 

May 2024 

Page 5

mailto:barbara.chillman@oxfordshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
Proposed Change of Category from Voluntary Controlled to Voluntary 

Aided for Aston Rowant Church of England School 

Notice is given in accordance with The School Organisation (Prescribed Alterations to 
Maintained Schools) (England) Regulations 2013 that Oxfordshire County Counci l 
intends to make a prescribed alteration to Aston Rowant CE Primary School, effective 

from 1 June 2024. 

The Local Authority, working with the leadership team of the school, is proposing to 

change the category of school from Voluntary Controlled to Voluntary Aided. 

This Notice is an extract from the full proposal, which can be viewed at 
letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/aston-rowant-school-category. Copies can also be requested 

by emailing school.planning@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

Within four weeks from the date of publication of this Notice, any person may object to 

or make comments on the proposal by sending them to the Local Authority using the 
online feedback form located on the Oxfordshire County Council website as detailed 
above, or by email to the above address.  

Signed: Lisa Lyons, Director of Children’s Services 

Publication Date: 29 February 2024 

 

Page 7

http://links.govdelivery.com/track?type=click&enid=ZWFzPTEmbWFpbGluZ2lkPTIwMTQwMjA2LjI4NTM2NzUxJm1lc3NhZ2VpZD1NREItUFJELUJVTC0yMDE0MDIwNi4yODUzNjc1MSZkYXRhYmFzZWlkPTEwMDEmc2VyaWFsPTE2ODc0NTk0JmVtYWlsaWQ9a2V2aW4uZ3JpZmZpbkBveGZvcmRzaGlyZS5nb3YudWsmdXNlcmlkPWtldmluLmdyaWZmaW5Ab3hmb3Jkc2hpcmUuZ292LnVrJmZsPSZleHRyYT1NdWx0aXZhcmlhdGVJZD0mJiY=&&&106&&&http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/3110/contents/made
http://links.govdelivery.com/track?type=click&enid=ZWFzPTEmbWFpbGluZ2lkPTIwMTQwMjA2LjI4NTM2NzUxJm1lc3NhZ2VpZD1NREItUFJELUJVTC0yMDE0MDIwNi4yODUzNjc1MSZkYXRhYmFzZWlkPTEwMDEmc2VyaWFsPTE2ODc0NTk0JmVtYWlsaWQ9a2V2aW4uZ3JpZmZpbkBveGZvcmRzaGlyZS5nb3YudWsmdXNlcmlkPWtldmluLmdyaWZmaW5Ab3hmb3Jkc2hpcmUuZ292LnVrJmZsPSZleHRyYT1NdWx0aXZhcmlhdGVJZD0mJiY=&&&106&&&http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/3110/contents/made
letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/aston-rowant-school-category
mailto:school.planning@oxfordshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

FULL STATUTORY PROPOSAL 

 

The School Organisation (Prescribed Alterations to Maintained Schools) 
(England) Regulations 2013 

 

Proposed Change of Category from Voluntary Controlled to 

Voluntary Aided for Aston Rowant Church of England School  
 

 
1. School and LA details 

 
School: Aston Rowant CE Primary School 
Address: School Lane, Aston Rowant, Oxfordshire, OX49 5SU 

Local Authority: Oxfordshire County Council 
 

2. Description of alteration 
 

Change of Church of England category from Voluntary Controlled to Voluntary Aided.  
 

3. Outline of proposed change and evidence of demand 

 

The Governors wish to maintain a close working relationship between the school, the 

local church and community, whilst continuing to work with the Local Authority.  The 

school’s current way of working is more closely aligned with that of a voluntary aided 

school than voluntary controlled.  The Governors also recognise that with ageing 

school buildings it is strategically important for the Board to have as much control and 

input as possible over the running of the school and the financial decisions made, in 

particular relating to premises maintenance and management. These reasons have 

resulted in the Board’s view that the best interests of the pupils, parents and school 

would be served by Aston Rowant CE School seeking a change to the voluntary aided 

category.  This will better represent the vision and ethos of the school. 

 
4. Objectives  

 

The proposed alteration would: 
 

● Better align the way the school currently operates with its Church of England 
status; 

● Offer the Governing Board greater input and flexibility over financial 
management. 

Page 9



5. The effect on other educational institutions within the area 

 

This proposed change will not have significant material impact on other local 
educational institutions. 
 

6. Project costs and funding  
 

The costs of delivering this project are not significant and will be met by the school.  
Funding for future works on buildings etc will be able to be met through accumulated 

savings and fundraising from the school and its supporters (e.g. PTA etc). 
 

7. Implementation and any proposed stages for implementation 

 
It is anticipated that this change will take place before the end of the 2023/24 academic 

year. 

8. Objections and comments 
 

Comments or objections must be received by Thursday 28 March 2024. 
 

Respond by: 

● using the online questionnaire at letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/aston-rowant-
school-category  

● or emailing school.planning@oxfordshire.gov.uk (please quote ASTON 
ROWANT CONSULTATION in the header)  

● handing in a written response at the reception office of Aston Rowant CE 
Primary School 

 

9. Decision-making 

 

The decision-maker for this proposed expansion is Oxfordshire County Council. The 
decision will be made by the Cabinet Member responsible for Education at a meeting 
which is open to the public, and publicised on the county council’s website. The 

decision must be made within a period of two months of the end of this 
representation period, and is currently expected on 15 May 2024. 

Page 10

letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/aston-rowant-school-category
letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/aston-rowant-school-category
mailto:school.planning@oxfordshire.gov.uk

	4 Aston Rowant CE Primary School - Change of Category
	CMDCEYPS - Annex 1
	CMDCEYPS - Annex 2


